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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF UNOMAX STATIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Unomax Stationery Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Lass, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

There are no key audit matters identified in our audit.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's R



The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone

Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment ofessional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that individually or in
aggregate makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,

that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of g
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind As specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure “B” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The company has no pending litigation as on 31 March 2025.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, which
could result in any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate



Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv) (b) contain any material misstatement.

(v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

(vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company which are companies

For B P Shah & Co.

incorporated in India has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts
for the year ended March 31,2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software.

Additionally audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

Chartered Accountants

Bharat P. Shah
(Partner)

M. No: 033530

UDIN: 25033530BMJQDB8952

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2025



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Unomax Stationery Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
- even date) *

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, intangible assets and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

b) The Company has a phased program for physical verification of the PPE for all locations. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable considering the size of the Company and nature of its PPE.
Physical verification of the assets has been carried out during the year pursuant to the programme in
that respect and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company does not own any
immovable property. Hence, the reporting under this clause regarding title deeds is not applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

e) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made there under.

iil. In respect of its inventories:

a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the

. frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management

were appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed on such physical verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets and movable Property, Plant and
Equipment.

iii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has made investments in companies. The Company had granted loan to
associate company in previous year in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us
the Company has provided loans to it's wholly owned subsidiary company viz.,, Unomax Writing
Instruments Pvt Ltd.The details are as below:

Particulars Loans (Rs.in lakhs)
Opening balance as on 01.04.2024 : 2865.00
Aggregate amount repaid during the year I 750.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 2115.00




vi.

vii,

viii.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted
by us, in our opinion, the investments and the loans outstanding as at balance sheet date are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has given interest free loan to subsidiary. The repayment of principal has not been

stipulated. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party during the
year.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.
Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any party during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion there were no instances of loans falling due during the year were
renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records u/s 148(1) of the companies act
2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities. There
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, -previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any banks and related parties during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial inskitatieq or government
or government authority.




xi.

xil,

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

xvi.

(c) on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year
and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall of examination of the financial statement of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short term basis have been used for long term purpose by the Company.

(e) The Company has not taken loan from any entity or any person on account of or to meet the obligation of
its subsidiaries, joint ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised any funds during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associates Companies. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
Standalone Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Based on our audit procedure performed and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no whistle blower complaints were received by the Company during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Note 39 of Standalone Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) we have considered the internal audit reports of the Company for the period under audit issued till date
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with its directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finange
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as pe
India Act, 1934.



xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(xvii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xvii)(d) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year and accordingly requirement to report on
Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 44 to the Standalone Financial Statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second
proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act .Hence
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

For B P Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(FRN: 109517 W)

Bharat P. Shah
(Partner)

M. No: 033530
UDIN: 25033530BMJQDB8952

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2025



Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Unomax Stationery Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of Unomax
Stationery Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Stand



A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company and;

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For B P Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 109517W)

Bharat P, Shah
(Partner)

M. No: 033530
UDIN: 25033530BMJQDB8952

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 May 2025



1.

2.1.

Unomax Stationery Private Limited

CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934 m
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2025 WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in lakhs unless otherwise stated

Corporate Information

Unomax Stationery Private Limited ('The Company') was incorporated on October 14, 2022, with Company
Identification No: U25111DD2022PTC009934 . The registered office of the Company is located at Building No.1,
Survey No.597/1 & 597/1-C, Somnath Road, Dabhel, Daman, Daman and Diu 396210, India. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and dealing in writing instruments, stationery and consumer products.

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

b) Business combinations
Business combinations under common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are
ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, are
considered as common control business combinations. Such business combinations involving entities or
businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interests method.

The assets and liabilities of the combining entities or businesses are reflected at their carrying amounts. No
adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that
are made are to harmonize accounting policies. The financial information in the financial statements in respect
of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. The identity of
the reserves appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is preserved and appears in the financial

statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the
transferor.

The differences, if any, between the amount of consideration paid or payable in cash or and the amount of share
capital / partners’ capital of the transferor and further adjusted for harmonization of the accounting policies,
has been transferred to ‘Capital reserve on account on common control transaction’ and presented separately
from other capital reserves.

During the financial years ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired businesses from entities which were
ultimately controlled by the same parties both before and after the business combination. These transactions
were in the nature of acquisition of the assets and liabilities under a slump sale arrangement or acquisition of

the equity stake from the existing shareholders or by conversion of partnership firms into private limited
companies.

Pursuant to the requirements of Appendix C of the Ind AS 103, these business combinations under common
control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method as explained above. The details of the business
combinations, the carrying value of the assets, liabilities and reserves acquired and harmonized as per the
revised accounting policies, and the resultant capital reserve are given in note 45.

c) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Standalone balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.
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An asset is treated as current when it is:
L Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
1l Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
I, Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

I It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
Il It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
1. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
IV.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Advance tax paid is classified
as non-current assets.

d) Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule |1l to the Companies Act 2013, Based on the nature
of services and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the
classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

2.2. Basis of measurement
a) Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following histarical cost convention, except for certain
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS. Fair value measurements are
categorized as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company can access at measurement date;
1. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are abservable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
M. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers between the
levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such transfer.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Financial instruments

b) Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these Standalone Financial Statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,

income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the estimates are



Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are ¥ in lakhs unless otherwise stated

WRITE BETTER

revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

vii.
viii.

Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Impairment test of non-financial assets

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

Fair value of financial instruments

Impairment of financial assets

Measurement of defined benefit obligations

Revenue recognition

Determination of incremental borrowing rate for leases

2.3. Significant accounting policies

a)

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Recognition and measurement:

Iltems of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in Statement of
Profit and Lass when the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided under straight line method in the manner
prescribed under Schedule 1l of the Act.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed of during the year, is provided
on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / deletion.
The estimated useful lives as mentioned below :

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Leasehold improvements 5Years
Plant and Machinery 8 Years
Electric Installation 10 Years
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Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Moulds and dies 8 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

b)

c)

d)

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the tenure of lease term. Leasehold land is amortized over
the period of lease. Buildings constructed on leasehold land are depreciated based on the useful life
specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the life of the

building. In other cases, buildings constructed on leasehold land is amortized over the primary lease period
of the land.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Capital work in progress and Capital advances :

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the end of the reporting period, is shown as capital work in
progress.

Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at end of each reporting period are disclosed
as other non-current assets.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding eligible development costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortization:

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives as mentioned below :

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Computer Software 3 Years
Design, Patents and Trademark 5 Years

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to

the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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e)

f)

g

h)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease and to
the extent that the impairment loss is greater than the related revaluation surplus, the excess impairment
loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that it eliminates the impairment loss
which has been recognised for the asset in prior years. Any increase in excess of this amount is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Leases:

Leasehold improvements are derecognized upon disposal, termination of the lease, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the derecognition occurs.

The company has derecognized lease improvements during the financial year 2024- 2025. The gain or loss
has been resulted in the statement of profit and loss during the year,

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases,
i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and no purchase option. The Company recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Standalone Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently at fair value through profit

or loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement:
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
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e Amortised cost,
s  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:
A financial instrument is measured at the Amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Financial assets - Equity Investment in subsidiaries, assaciates and joint venture:
The Company has accounted for its equity investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flow from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL"”) model for measurement

and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at Amortised cost and debt
instruments measured at FVOCI.

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount equal
to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Company uses historical default rates to determine
impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates
are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analyzed. In respect of other financial
assets, the loss allowance is measured at 12-month ECL only if there is no significant deterioration in the
credit risk since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial
liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):
A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as held-far
trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
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value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost:
After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subsequently
measured at Amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The Amortisation done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities - Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be
made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Standalone
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

A provision is recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, but their
existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised till the realization of the income is virtually

certain. However, the same are disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods and Services

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products comprising of manufacturing and dealing
in writing instruments, stationery and consumer products.
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k)

m)

The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance with the
provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved when control of the product has been
transferred to the customer, which is generally determined when title, ownership, risk of obsolescence
and loss pass to the customer and the Company has the present right to payment, all of which occurs at a
point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product.

The Company considers shipping and handling activities as costs to fulfil the promise to transfer the related

products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs are recorded as a component of
revenue.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction
price is based upon the amount the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring of
promised goods and services to the customer after deducting incentive programs, included but not limited
to discounts, volume rebates etc.

For incentives offered to customers, the Company makes estimates related to customer performance and
sales volume to determine the total amounts earned and to be recorded as deductions. The estimate is
made in such a manner, which ensures that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will nat occur. The actual amounts may differ fram these estimates and
are accounted for prospectively.

No element of significant financing is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit term, which is
consistent with market practice.

Contract balances
Trade receivables:
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is

recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Other Income

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition..

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. ’
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n)

o)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia including non-monetary benefits that are expected to
be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are recognised as an expense in the
Standalone Statement of profit and loss as the related service is provided.

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences based on statutory provisions.
The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders
the services that increases this entitlement.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Company pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance. Contribution paid or payable in respect of defined contribution
plan is recognised as an expense in the year in which services are rendered by the employee.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The liability is recognised in the balance
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance sheet date
less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain losses and past

service costs. The defined benefit/obligation are calculated at balance sheet date by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (QCl).

Taxation

Income tax expense /income comprises current tax expense /income and deferred tax expense /credit. It is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income. In which case, the tax is also recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if,
e the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
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p)

q)

= intends either 1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amount considered for tax purpose.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of
that deferred tax asset to be utilized and such reductions are reversed when it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

e the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

e the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders' and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders' and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the
year including share options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result
would be anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such
potential equity shares, to the date of conversion.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liahility takes place either:

L In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

I In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of uncobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
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r)

s)

significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unabservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
Cash flows for the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

Recent Accounting pronouncements:

.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from
April 1, 2023 as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose the material accounting policies rather than
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general
purpose financial statements

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 —~ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of
accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting

estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty.
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Particulars Notes As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2,980.44 3,185.19
b) Right-of-use assets 6 - 612.24
c) Capital work-in-progress 5 - 1.49
d) Intangible assets 7 4.82 6.96
&) Financial assets
i} Investments 8 101.00 101.00
ii) Loans 9 837 12.57
iil) Other financial assets 10 8.45 6.89
f) Deferred tax assets {net) 11 - -
g} Income tax assets (net) 12 - 8.72
h) Other non-current assets 13 2.40 22.95
Total non-current assets 3,105.48 3,958.01
2) Current Assets
a) Inventories 14 2,932.19 3,402.03
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 15 10,022.56 8,675.41
ii) Cash & cash equivalents 16 226.06 37.56
iii) Loans 9 2,131.00 2,879.90
c} Other current assets 13 947.43 944.23
Total current assets 16,259.24 15,939.13
Total assets 19,364.72 19,897.14
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 17 1.00 1.00
b) Other equity 18 12,784.01 8,124.16
Total equity 12,785.01 8,125.16
Liabilities
1) Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Lease liabilities 6.1 - 479.91
b) Provisions 19 273.00 140.00
c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 11 14.67 55.91
Total non-current liabilities 287.67 675.82
2) Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i} Borrowings 20 4,800.00 8,649.17
ii) Lease liabilities 6.1 - 20892
iii) Trade payahles 21
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 207.64 404.63
(b) Total autsl_:andmg dues of creditors other than micro and 121021 1,683.24
small enterprises
iv) Other financial liabilities 22 - 2857
b) Other current liabilities 24 20.89 119.26
c} Provisions 19 30.71 -
d) Current tax liabilities (net) 23 22.59 237
Total current liabilities 6,292.04 11,096.16
Total equity and liabilities 19,364.72 19,897.14
The accompanying material accounting policies and notes farm an 146

integral part of the standalone financial statements.

In terms of our report attached of even date

For B.P.Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants,
{FRN- 109517W)

Mumbai - May 22, 2025

UDIN: 95033530MTADJ s‘is’;_

Mumbai - May 22, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Unomax Stationery Private Lipited

e

Pankaj G. Rathod
Director
(DIN: 00027572)

Prade! thod
Director
(DIN: 00027527)




Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2025 WRITE BETTER
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
L Revenue from operations 25 21,875.50 27,241.39
il. | Other income 26 258.14 176.27
. | Total income [I+1) 22,134.04 27,417.66
IV. | Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 27 8,828.13 11,534.02
{b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and semi finished goods % 566.59 324.30
(c) Employee benefits expense 29 3,531.85 3,477.11
(d) Finance costs 30 55.94 151.69
{e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 31 592.60 ¥52.13
{f) Other expenses Er 2,198.12 3,359.63
Total expenses 15,774.23 19,598.88
V. | Profit before tax (llI-IV) 5,359.81 7,818.78
Vi, | Tax expenses 33
(a) Current tax 1,646.37 1,894.00
{b) Deferred tax {17.37) 440
Total tax expenses 1,629.00 1,898.40
Vil, | Profit for the year (V-Vi) 4,730.81 5,920.38
VIll. | Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
i) Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (94.83) (4.65)
i) Income tax relating to above 23.87 1.17
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year/period, net
of tax (70.96) (3.48)
Total comprehensive income for the year/period (VIVII) 4,659.85 5,916.90
IX. | Earning per equity share of face value of % 10/- each 34
Basic {in %) 47,308.10 59,203.80
Diluted ( in ) 47,308.10 59,203,80
The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an 146

integral part of the standalone financial statements.

In 1erms of our report attached of even date

For B.P.Shah & Co
Chartered Accountants
(FRN- 109517W)

Mumbai - May 22, 2025

UDIN: 25533530 AMNTQBD 8952

Mumbal - May 22, 2025

For and nnhehaﬁuiﬁoardufbiremrsu‘f

Unnww Private ed

Pankaj G. Rathod
Director
(DIN: 00027572)

. Rathod
Dmaclnr
(DIN: 00027527)




Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March31,2025 | March31,2024 |
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 6,359.81 7,818.78
Adjustments for:
Interest income (0.54) (0.45)
Foreign exchange gain (Net) (159.25) (175.72)
Gain on sale of property plant and equipments - [0.07)
Sundry credit balances written back (0.02) (0.03)
Gain on early termination on lease (76.59) -
Gain on sale of mutual fund (21.74) -
Sundry balances written off - -
Interest expense 55.94 151.69
Depreciation 592.60 752.13
Operating Profit before working capital changes 6,750.21 8,546.33
Movements in working capital: (1,446.87) (1,519.76)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 469.84 85.12
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,234.42) (2,041.63)
(Increase)/decrease in financial and other assets 119.16 (12.54)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (789.25) 391.39
Increase/(Decrease) in financial and other liabilities (81.08) 1.05
Increasef{decrease) in provisions 68.88 56.85
Cash generated by operations 5,303.34 7,026.57
Income taxes paid by (1,617.44) (1,992.53)
Net cash by operating activities (A) 3,685.90 5,034.04
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (379.36) (714.82)
Purchase of intangible assets (1.73) -
Sale of property, plant and equipment 17.42 2.10
Loan given to related parties - (110.00)
Loan repaid by related parties 750.00 -
Purchase of investment (1,000.00)
Sale on investment 1,021.74
Proceeds from / (Investment in) bank deposits (net) (1.02) 21.61
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) 407.05 (801.11)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (55.28) (92.64)
Loan repaid to banks (3,162.00) (100.00)
Loan taken from related parties 1,149.23 -
Loan (given) from related parties (3,548.40) (3,750,00)
Loan taken from banks 1,732.00 -
Payment of lease liabilities (0.00) (261.95)
Net cash from financing activities (C) (3,904.45) (4,204.59
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+(C) 188.50 28.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 37.56 9.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year /period (refer note 226.06 37.56
16)

The accompanying material accounting palicies and notes form an integral part of the
standalone financial statement.

For B.P.Shah & Co
Chartered Account
(FRN- 109517W)

T}‘p Pankaj G. Rathod
Director
Bharat P. Shah
(DIN: 00027572)

Mumbal - May 22, 2025 Mumbai - May 22, 2025

For and on behalf of Beard of Directors of
Unomax Stationery Private Lifhited

. Rathod

Director

(DIN: 00027527)



Jnomax Stationery Private Limited

IN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

tandalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
\l amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

A) Equity share capital

WRITE BETTER

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Changes in equity

Restated balance at

Changes in equity

Balance as at March

Balance as at April 01, 2024 share capital due to April 01, 2024 share capital during 31, 2025

prior period errors the year

1.00 1.00 1.00

For the period ended March 31, 2024

Changes in equity | Restated balance at | Changes in equity | Balance as at March
Balance as at April 01, 2023 share capital due to April 01, 2023 share capital during 31, 2024

prior period errors the previous year

1,00 1.00 1.00
B) Other equity
Particulars Capital reserve on Retained earning Other Total
business Comprehensive
combination under income
common cantrol

Balance as at April 01, 2023 (90.57) 2,287.64 10.19 2,207.26
Profit for the year - 5,920.38 - 5,920.38
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - (3.48) (3.48)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (90.57) 8,208.02 6.71 8,124.16
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (90.57) 8,208.02 6.71 8,124.16
Balance as at April 01, 2024 (90.57) 8,208.02 6.71 8,124.16
Profit for the year - 4,730.81 - 4,730.81
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (net of tax) (70.98) (70.96)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 4,730.81 (70.96) 4,659.85
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (90.57) 12,938.83 (64.25) 12,784.01

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statement.




“Jasse pajeja. 2y Jo wnowe JuiAiied ay) wouy palanpap uaaq sey juesd syl ‘0z Sy PU| Yim sJuepJodde u| "jue|d Jejos
10 uonisinbae ayy c} paje|al ‘, TT'V ON SWaYIS- UOIEISUSD JIMOJ JEJOS Ul JUBLWISAU| [ede) J0) 3JUe)s|SsY, Japun 000°00°05: 03 Sununowe JUeJsd Juawuianod e paniadal Auedwo) ay) “Jeak syy Bung

“sieak snojaald pue 1ualina ay3 Juunp (s1asse-asn-jo-1ydu Suipn|pu) Juawdinba pue jueid ‘Apadoud s1| panjeadsjou sey Auedwiol ayl '

‘20T 'TE YaJey papua Jeah pue §z0Z ‘TE Y2IeN papua Jeah ayy Bulinp pasiudodas s3550] JUawedw) ou ase aiayl T't

T0'Z90°E 59017 TETZET S6'6 v8'e 8B'E8 v 68 TT99ET 2691 €202 '10 |MdY e se ajuejeg
6T'S8T'E otr's o¥'SSY'T 10°s €S°L ov'vL SvLL 80°6ZH'T 'L V20T 'T€ Yo4B|N 1B SE dauejeq
i"086'C ss'L 9E"0TH'T E€T'E 6T'S LS9 €5'59 TLLEET 01's8 SZ0Z ‘TE Ya4eA Je se aduejeg
(11-1) @3ueieq a0iq 12N I
LE'TIET PL'E e IPS LT'TT S0'L 60°LZ 8'8Z €8'T6S 28°66 S20Z ‘T€ Y2Ie 3B se aduejeg
(85°11) (8S°TT) 513558 Jo |esodsip U0 pajeulwlg
£L'885 SSs'T 87°05T T0€ S8’z YE'TI £6'TT $9°59T [48r47 leak ay} 1o} asuadxa uoieaidag
TTVEL 6T°CT 95°'162 91’8 o'y SL'ST 1691 9L'LEE 0L°LS Z0Z ‘T |14dy e se aJuejeg
ZTVEL 6I°C 95'16T 91’8 oT'y SL°ST 1691 9L LEE 0L°LS PZ0Z ‘TE YaIBA 18 se adue|eg
{£6'0) - - B - - = (Z60) - syasse jo |esodsip uo pajeullul|3
L6'EVS SS'T €E'61T 8v's 00°€ LT'TT L6'TT S6'8PT rairad leak ayy a0} asuadxa uopepaidag
TT16T 90 €TTL B89°C 0zt 85t ve'v 8L'68 8T'ST £20Z ‘T |14dy 18 se aouejeg
uopjepaldag palenwnady ||
18 16Z'Y 6T°TT 0Z'ZS6'T vt | Zar4s 9826 9E'v6 SS'6Z6'T T6°78T SZOZ ‘TE YoieN 1 se aduejeg
{oo0'62) L - - - = - 00°'62- - sjuawisnipe pue siajsuesy ‘sjesodsig
6%'T - ¥ - = = % 6Y'T - dIMD Wolj Jajsuel)
T6°66€ 5 v2's0Z €21 150 TLZ = ZT'06T ® suonippy
IV'6T6'E 62'TT 96'9PL'T BI'ET ELTT SL'06 9E'V6 ¥8'99L'T Z6'V8T #zoz ‘T |14dy 38 se aduejeg
I#'6T6'E 62'TL 96'9%L'T 8TEL ELIT S1°06 9E'v6 ¥8'99LT Z6'¥8T 202 ‘TE Y2IEN 3B Se aduejeg
{o0°g) E - - - - {o0°€) - sjuaunsnipe pue siajsuel ‘sjesodsig
81°699 - TV'Z5E ¥s0 690 69T = 8'ETE < suolIppy
ETEST'E 61T vSP6E'T 79'ZT v0'TT 9v°88 9ET6 00'95F'T z6'78T £20Z ‘T |dy 1€ se adue|eg
1500 |
sSIp BUENIELLE] SaImIXd UOHE[[EIsu] TISUIGIEN | 53u9
|elo1 EETRITTEY pue spjnol signdwo) o pue asnyjuing LITRRETE| pue jueid ployaseal sigjnopued
juawdinba g jue|d ‘Ajadoid +
Pa1E)S 5IMIYI0 SSIUN SUYET UL X 3B SJUNOLUE ||y
d71178 I118M S70Z ‘TE Y2Jell 18 SB JUSWAIL]S [elauBul] SUO|EPUEIS 3y} O} S3ION

#€£660001dZZ0ZAATTISZN :NID
panwiy aeaud Asauoiels xewoun



Jnomax Stationery Private Limited
1N: U25111DD2022PTC009934

lotes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025

il amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

5 Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Plant and
Machinery
Balance as at April 1, 2023 1.55
Additions 0.03
Transfers to PPE (0.09)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.49
Balance as at April 1, 2024 1.49
Additions .
Transfers to PPE (1.49)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 0.00

5.1 CWIP ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

WRITE BETTER

There are no capital work in progress during the year ended March 31, 2025 and therefore additional disclosures under Schedule Il for ageing is not

applicable.

5.2 CWIP ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Loss than 1 year 1:2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Projects in Progress
Plant and Machinery 0.02 1.47 - - 1.49
Projects temporarily suspended = - - - -

5.3 There are no projects as on the reporting year which has exceeded cost as compared to its original plan or where completion is overdue.



Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025 WRITE BEITER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

6 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Premises Total
l. Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 782.20 782.20
Additions - -
Remesurement 107.23 107.23
Disposals, transfers and adjustments - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 889.43 889.43
Balance as at April 1, 2024 889.43 889.43
Additions - -
Remesurement (889.43) (889.43)
Disposals, transfers and adjustments - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00
ll. Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 73.27 73.27
Depreciation expense for the year 203.92 203.92
Eliminated on disposal = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 277.19 277.19
Balance as at April 1, 2024 277.19 277.19
Depreciation expense for the year - -
Eliminated on disposal (277.19) (277.19)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 * -
Ill. Net carrying value (I-11}
As on March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00
As on March 31, 2024 612.24 612.24
As on April 01, 2023 708.93 708.93
6.1 Details of lease liabilities
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 772.20
Recognised during the year =
Remesurement 107.23
Finance cost accrued during the year 71.35
Payment of lease liabilities (261.95)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 688.83
Balance as at April 1, 2024 688.83
Recognised during the year -
Remesurement (688.83)
Finance cost accrued during the year »
Payment of lease liabilities -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 (0.00)




Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC0O093934
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025

WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
6.2 Classification of lease liabilities
As on March 31, As on March 31,
2025 2024
Non-current - 47991
Current - 208.92
Total - 688.83

6.3 The company has taken premises on lease for a lease term of NIL.(Remaining lease term as on March

31,2024: 3 years).

6.4 Amount recognised in profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended e::;;h;:rec':;i
r
March 31, 2025 2024
- Amortisation expenses on right-of-use assets “ 73.27
- Gain on early termination of lease 76.59 -
- Interest expenses on |ease liability - 30.63
- Expenses related to short term leases 340.66 84.29

6.5 The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an

undiscounted basis.

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Less than one year - 230.40
One to five years - 691.20
More than five years - -
Total - 921.60
Financing Compaonent - (232.77)
Total - 688.83

6.6 The total cash outflows for leases during the period amounts to X 340.66 lakhs ( March 31, 2023 is £ 346.24

lakhs) (includes cash outflow for short term and long term leases).

6.7 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets
are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.




Unomax Stationery Private Limited

CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025 WRITE BETTER
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
7 Intangible assets
Particulars Computer Design, Patent & Total
are Trademark

I. Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2023 4.98 9.18 14.16
Additions - - -
Disposals, transfers and adjustments < & -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.98 9.18 14.16
Balance as at April 1, 2024 4.98 9.18 14.16
Additions 1.73 - 1.73
Disposals, transfers and adjustments - 5 -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 6.71 9.18 15.89
Il. Accumulated Amartisation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 2.01 0.96 2.97
Amortisation expense for the year 191 2.32 4,23
Eliminated on disposal of assets - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.92 3.28 7.20
Balance as at April 1, 2024 3.92 3.28 7.20
Amortisation expense for the year 1.55 232 3.87
Eliminated on disposal of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5.47 5.60 11.07
Il. Net block balance (I-11)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1.24 3.58 4.82
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.06 5.90 6.96
Balance as at April 01, 2023 2.97 8.22 11.19 |

disclosure requirements with respect to fair value details is not applicable.

7.1 The Company has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule il
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Unomax Stationery Private Limited

CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

WRITE BETTER

9 Loans

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Non-current - unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated
Loans to employees 8.37 12.57
Total 8.37 12.57
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans to employees 16.00 14.90
Loan to related parties for business purpose (refer note 39) 2,115.00 2,865.00
Total 2,131.00 2,879.90

9.1 The Company has provided its subsidiaries with interest free loans which are repayable on demand. These loans are

held by the Company with a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows which are solely

payments of principal. Hence, these loans are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

9.2 Details of fair value of the loans carried at amortised cost is disclosed in note 40.

9.3 Details of Loans to related parties which are repayable on demand

As at March 31, 2025
Type of borrowers Amount of loan Percentage to the
outstanding total Loans |
Subsidiaries
Unomax Writing Instruments Private Limited 2,115.00 98.86%
As at March 31, 2024
Type of borrowers Amount of loan Percentage to the
outstanding total Loans
Subsidiaries
Unomax Writing Instruments Private Limited 2,865.00 99.05%

10 Other financial assets

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

Non-current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Deposits with bank
- Long term deposits with banks with remaining maturity period

more than 12 months
Total

8.45

6.89

8.45

6.89

10.1 Deposit with banks include fixed deposits of X 8.45 lakhs (X 6.89 lakhs as at March 31, 2024) kept against bank

guarantee submitted to electricity department.
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Unomax Stationery Private Limited
CIN: U25111DD2022PTC009934

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025 WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
12 Income tax assets (net)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Advance tax (net of provisions) - 8.72
Total - 8.72
13 Other assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Non-current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances 2.40 22.95
Total 2.40 22.95
Current - unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances to suppliers 428.70 309.45
Balances with government authorities (other than income taxes) 365.51 519.93
Export incentives receivables 124.22 89.11
Prepaid expenses 29.00 25.29
Other Receivables - 0.45
Total 947.43 944.23
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WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
14 Inventories
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw materials 1,938.17 1,856.10
Packing material 258.38 243.70
Semi-finished goods 545.85 782.71
Finished goods 189.79 519.52
Total 2,932.19 3,402.03

14.1 The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was % 9394.72 lakhs (March 31,2024 % 11858.32
lakhs). The Company has no write-down of inventory to net realisable value as at March 31, 2025 and as at March 31,

2024

14.2 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 2.3 (f).

15 Trade receivables

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Trade receivables
Considered good, unsecured 10,022.56 8,675.41
10,022.56 8,675.41
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts s -
Total 10,02;.56 8,575.41=

15.1 The average credit period on sales of goods is 50-90 days.

15.2 Details of trade receivables from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other person or from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director

or a member:

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
Trade receivables from
Key management personnel = .
Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence 6,746.76 5,796.64

15.3 Trade receivables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 38.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

16 Cash and cash equivalents

WRITE BETTER

Total

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Cash on hand 0.97 0.99
Balances with banks
- In Current accounts 225.09 36.57
226.06 37.56
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WRITE BETTER
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17 Equity share capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authaorised capital
Equity Shares of X 10/- each 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00
1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up |
Equity Shares of X 10/- each 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 |
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00 |

17.1 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares with face value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder has a voting right in proportion to his
holding of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. Where dividend is proposed by the board of directors, it is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the annual general meeting (AGM), and in the case of interim dividend, it is ratified by the

shareholders at the AGM.

17.2 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the relevant year 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Add: Issued during the year = = - -
At the end of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
17.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of % holding in Number of % holding in
shares held that class of shares held that class of
shares shares
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private 9,999 99.99% 9,999 99.99%
Limited)
17.4 Details of Change in % holding of the Promoters
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2025 % Change
Number of % of total | during the year
shares held shares
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod (Nominee) 1 0.01% 0.00%
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private 9,999 99.99% 0.00%
Limited)
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 % Change
Number of % of total | during the year
shares held shares
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod (Nominee) 1 0.01% 0.00%
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private 9,999 99.99% 0.00%
Limited)

17.5

During the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

- No class of shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.
- No class of shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares for consideration other than cash and no class of shares

were bought back by the Company.
17.6 There are no calls unpaid.

17.7 There are no forfeited shares.
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1B Other equity
Particulars As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2025 2024
Capital reserve (90.57) (90.57)
Retained earnings 12,938.83 8,208.02
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (64.25) 6.71
Total 12,784.01 8,124.16
18.1 Capital reserve
Particulars As at March 31,| Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Balance at beginning of the year (90.57) (90.57)
Add: Changes during the year - -
Balance at end of the year (90.57) {90.57)

Capital reserve represents excess of net assets acquired in business combination under common

control and purchase consideration paid.

18.2 Retained earnings

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 8,208.02 2,287.64
Add: Profit for the year 4,730.81 5,920.38
Balance at end of the year 12,938.83 8,208.02

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to General
Reserve, dividends or other distributions to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available

to the Company.

18.3 Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Particulars As at March 31,| Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Balance at beginning of the year 6.71 10.19
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (94.83) (4.65)
Income tax on above 23.87 1.17
Balance at end of the year (64.25) 6.71

Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified

to statement of profit and loss.

19 Provisions

Particulars As at March 31,| Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 38) 273.00 140.00
Total 273.00 140.00
Current
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (Refer note 38) 30.71 -
Total 30.71 -
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WRITE BETTER
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20 Current Borruwings
Particulars As at March 31,| As at March 31,
2025 2024

Secured - Loans from Bank

Loan from bank - packing credit (refer notes 20.1) - 1,450.00
Unsecured - at amortised cost

Loan from related parties 4,800.00 7,199.17
Total 4,800.00 8,649.17

20.1 Secured borrowings from bank were carrying on interest of SOFR-3% p.a. subvention and are payable

within a year.

20.2 Loans from related parties are interest free and repayable on demand Borrowings from related parties

are disclosed separately under note 39.

20.3 Reconciliation of borrowings outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

Balance as at the beginning of the year 8,649.17 12,511.54
Financing cash flows

- Loan Taken 2,881.23 2,950.00

- Loan Repaid (6,730.41) (6,812.37)

- Interest paid (55.28) (92.64)
Non-cash changes

- Interest accruals on account of amortisation 55.28 92.64
Balance as at the end of the year 4,800.00 8,649.17

20.4 There were no default in repayment of borrowings during the current year.
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21 Trade payables
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
(a) Total outstanding dues of small and micro enterprises 207.64 404.63
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small and
micro enterprises 1,210.21 1,683.24
Total 1,417.85 2,087.87

21.1 The average credit period on purchases range from 7 to 60 days.

21.2 For explanations on the Company’s liquidity risk management processes refer note 39.3.

21.3 Trade payables from related parties are disclosed separately under note 38.

21.4 Disclosures as required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(MSMED Act):

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006’ has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information avzilable with the Company. This has been relied upon

by the auditors.

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

(a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act and remaining unpaid as at period end

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at period end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(c) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
dav during the period

(d) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during
the period

(e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under
MSMED Act, for payments already made

(f) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods

207.64

404.63
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24

25

WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
22 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Other Payable - 28.57

Total - 28.57

22.1 Details of fair value of the liabilities carried at amortised cost is disclosed in note 40.
23 Current tax liabilities [net of advance tax)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 22.59 2.37
Total 22.59 2.37
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
-
Statutory liabilities 15.54 67.39
Advance from customers 5.35 51.87
Total 20.89 119.26
Revenue from operations
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sales of products 21,256.57 26,580.94
Sales of services 5.95 8.16
Other operating revenue
- Export incentives 583.41 607.32

- Scrap sales 29.97 4497

Total 21,875.90 27,241.39

25.1 The Company presently recognises its revenue from contract with customers for the transfer of goods at a point in time and
rendering services over the time. This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reportable

segment under Ind AS 108.

External revenue by timing of revenue For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Goods transfer at a point in time 21,256.57 26,580.94
Services transferred over time 5.95 8.16
Total 21,262.52 26,589.10

25.2 Contract balances
Refer details of trade receivables in note 15 and contract liabilities (advance from customer) in note 24.

25.3 The Company receives payments from customers based upon contractual billing schedules. Accounts receivable are recorded

25.4 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

profit and loss.

= For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contracted price with the customers 21,592.01 26,815.83
Reduction towards variables considerations (Discounts, rebates, refunds, (329.49) (226.73)
credits, price concessions)
Revenue from contracts with customers as per standalone statement of 21,262.52 26,589.10

25.5 There are no performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied during the year ended March‘Bl, 2025 and

year ended March 31, 2024,
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WRITE BETTER
All amounts are X in Lakhs unless otherwise stated
Other income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest Income on financial assets measures at amortised cost
- Bank deposits 0.54 0.45
0.54 0.45
Income on financial assets measured at FVTPL
Gain on sale of mutual funds 21.74 -
21.74 -
Other non-operating income
- Exchange fluctuation gain 159.25 175.72
- Gain on early termination of lease 76.59
- Sundry balances written back 0.02 0.03
- Profit on sale of Fixed Assets - 0.07
235.86 175.82
Total 258.14 176.27
Cost of materials consumed
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Raw materials 1,856.10 1,539.72
Packing material 243.70 320.90
Add: Purchases
Raw materials 7,298.20 9,889.69
Packing material 1,626.68 1,883.51
Inventories at the end of the year
Raw materials (1,938.17) (1,856.10)
Packing material (258.38) (243.70)
Total 8,828.13 11,534.02
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28 Changes in Inventories of finished goods & semi-finished goods
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 519.52 820.20
Semi-finished goods 782.71 806.33
1,302.23 1,626.53
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods (189.79) (519.52)
Semi-finished goods (545.85) (782.71)
(735.64) (1,302.23)
Total 566.59 324.30
Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 3,163.73 3,126.61
Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 38) 249.87 246.18
Gratuity (refer note 38) 68.88 56.84
Staff welfare expenses 49.37 47.48
Total 3,531.85 3,477.11
Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest cost - on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Bank overdraft/loans 55.28 80.27
- Lease liabilities - 71.35
Interest on delayed payment of taxes/others 0.66 0.07
Total 55.94 151.69
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 588.73 543.98
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6) 3.87 423
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5) - 203.92
Total 592.60 752.13
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Other Expenses

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advertisements - 0.89
Books and periodicals 0.30 0.26
Bank and other charges 45.20 24.42
Clearing and forward charge 128.35 123.98
Carriage outward 188.01 136.55
Consumption of stores and spares 459.10 87.35
Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 33.2) 109.81 63.25
Donation 1.10 1.90
Factory expenses 8.84 63.56
Insurance 27.85 26.38
Labour/jobwork charges 579.09 902.87
Legal & professional charges 94.15 122.96
Membership & Subscription 0.33 0.18
Payment to auditors (Refer Note 33.1) 10.75 13.40
Power & water charges 286.64 316.15
Postage & telegram expenses 22,27 19.85
Printing & stationery 13.45 16.72
Rates & Taxes - 0.49
Rent 340.66 84.29
Repairs & maintenance

- Plant and machinery 32.01 76.69

- Building 14.42 -

- Others 34.38 66.62
Sales commission 42.38 423.56
Sales promotion & conference 18.00 624.55
Software expenses 0.27 -
Security charges 10.43 9.75
Royalty charges 60.00 82.82
Telephone & fax Expenses 2.30 3.70
Travelling & conveyance 68.67 54.22
Miscellaneous expenses 10.36 12.27
Total 2,199.12 3,359.63
Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses:

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- For Statutory Audit 8.50 9.40
- Other matters 2:25 4.00
Total 10.75 13.40
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32.2 Expenses on corporate social responsibility
No. Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1|Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (under Section 109.81 63.25
135 of the Companies Act, 2013} (Refer note (a) below)
2|Amount of expenditure incurred
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets " -
(i) On purpose other than (i) above 105.81 63.25
3|Amount not spent during the year (Refer note (b) below)
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets =
(ii) On purpose other than (i} above 5
4| Amount of shortfall for the year - -
5|Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year = -
6|Reason for shortfall =
7|Amount yet to be spent/paid - -
8| Details of Related party transactions
Cello Foundation (Formerly known as Badamia Charitable Trust) 109.81 63.25
9|Liability incurred by entering into contractual obligations - -
10|Nature of CSR activities: Health care, Health care,
Education, Social Education, Social
Welfare and Animal | Welfare and Animal
Welfare Wielfare
a. As per statutory requirements, the Company evaluates any shortfall at end of respective financial year.
b. Details of excess amount spent under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Opening balance = =
Amount required to be spent during the year 109.81 63.25
Amount spent during the year (109.81) {63.25)
Closing balance (Excess) /Unspent - -
33 Current Tax and Deferred Tax
33.1 Income Tax Expense recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
rch31,2025 | March31,2024 |
Current Tax:
In respect of current year 1,588.00 1,894.00
Short provision of tax relating to earlier years 48.37
Total current tax expense 1,646.37 1,894.00
Deferred Tax expense
In respect of current year (17.37) 4.40
Total deferred tax expense (17.37) 4.40
Total tax expense recognised in the reporting year 1,629.00 1,898.40
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33.2 Income Tax recognised in other Comprehensive Income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Gain/(Loss):
Remeasurement gain/(loss) of Defined Benefit Obligations 23.87 137
Total 23.87 117

33.3 Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate:

Particulars

For the year ended

Profit before income tax

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

For the year ended

6,359.81 7,818.78
Less: Income taxed at different tax rate - %
Profit Before tax at normal rate 6,359.81 7,818.78
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate # 1,600.64 1,967.83
Effect of items that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 28.08 16.41
Effect of items that are deductible in determining taxable profit (31.10) (93.35)
Others 31.38 7.51
Income tax expense recognised in standalone statement of profit or loss 1,629.00 1,898.40 .

# The tax rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate plus surcharge (as applicable) on corporate tax,
education cess and secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profits under Income Tax Act, 1961.

In pursuance of Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by the Government of India through Taxation Laws
{Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, the Company has opted for irrevocable option of shifting to lower tax rate w.e.f FY 22-23.

33.4 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during any of the above periods/years in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,

search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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Earnings per Equity Share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Profit for the period 4,730.81 5,920.38
(b) Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding for the 10,000.00 10,000
purpose of basic earnings per share (numbers)
{c) Effect of potential ordinary shares (numbers) - =
(d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted 10,000 10,000
earnings per share [(b) + (c)] (numbers)
{e) Earnings per share on Profit for the year (Face Value  10/- per share)
—Basic [(a)/(b)] (R) 47,308.10 59,203.80
— Diluted [(a)/(d)] (%) 47,308.10 5%,203.80
Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
(i) Contingent Liabilities (Refer Foot Note) NIL NIL
(ii) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 5.61 48,63

and not provided for (net of advances)

35.1 The Company did not expect any outflow of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision was

36

made in respect thereof.

Segment information

36.1 The Company has identified one operating segment viz, “Consumer Products” which is consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Board of Directors, who has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segment of the Company.

36.2

36.3

Geographical information

The Company operates in two geographical environment i.e. in India and outside India.
The Company's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information

about its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

Particulars Revenue from External Customers

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within India 6,993.68 11,787.78
Qutside India 14,268.84 14,803.42
Tatal 21,262.52 26,591,20
Particulars Non-current assets*®

As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
Within India 2,987.66 3,735.23
Outside India - -
Total 2,987.66 3,735.23
*Non-current assets exclude investments in subsidiaries, loans, finance lease receivables, other financial assets, and deferred
tax assets.
Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from direct sales of goods and services of  11,941.98 |acs for the year ended March 31, 2025 (%
14,753.59 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024) which arose from sales to three major customer which accounts for
56.61 % (55.49% for the vear ended March 31,2024) of the total revenue from sales operation.
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37 Employee benefit plans

37.1 Defined contribution plans:
The Company participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense
recognised in relation to provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company at rates
specified by the rules of provident fund. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months

eontributions that were not naid until after the end of the renortine neriord.
(a) Provident fund and pension

In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are
entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company
make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the
law, are made to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further
obligations under the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and
Loss in the period they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company.

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits

EXEEHSIE‘ are as under:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Emplovyer's contribution to provident fund and pension 249,13 245.37

iii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporation 0.74 0.81

Total 249.87 246.18

(b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a funded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death while in employment or on termination of the
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based
on an actuarial valuation. The Company makes annual contributions (from year ended March 31, 2023 onwards) to gratuity fund
managed by Kotak Mahindra Life [nsurance Company Limited.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended
March 31, 2025 by an independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service
cost and past service cost, were measured using the proiected unit credit method.

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed balow
(1) Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an

increase in the salary of the members more than assumed leve!l will increase the plan's liability.
(2} Interest rate risk

Afallin the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision.

A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.
{3) Investment risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a

olan deficit. Currentlv. for the plan in India. it has a relativelv balanced mix of investments in government securities. and other
(4) Mortality risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity
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(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used:
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

1. Discount rate 6.50% 6.95%

2. Salary escalation

- Office staff 6.00% 6.00%

- Worker 5.00% 5.00%

3. Expected return of Assets 6.50% 6.95%
4. Rate of employee turnover

- Office staff 2.00% 2.00%

- Worker 15.00% 17.00%

5. Mortality rate

India assured lives mortality (2012-14) ult.

(C) Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Current service cost 59.17 51.24
Expected return on plan sssets (1.13) (0.93)
Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 10.84 6.53
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in statement of profit and loss 68.88 56.84

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expenses' line item in

the Statement of profit and lass.

(D) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars

For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions 2.10 (8.59)
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 8.21 (9.54)
- Due to experience adjustment 84.55 25.27
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income {0.03) (2.39)
Net {incomaljexgense for the period recognized in OCI 94.83 4.65
(E} Amount recognised in the balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 303.74 156.32
Fair value of plan assets (0.02) {16.32)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 303.72 140.00
(F) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Recognised under: As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 _ 2024
Non-current provision 273.00 140.00
Current provision 30.72 -
Total 393.?2 140.00
{G) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 156.32 91.51
Current service cost 59.17 51.24
Interest cost 10.84 6.53
Actuarial losses 94.86 7.04
Benefits paid from the fund (17.45) -
Closing defined benefit obligation 303.74 156.32
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Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening fair value of the plan assets (16.32) (13.00)
Contributions by the Employer 17.46 -
Interests on plan assets {1.13) {0.93)
Remeasurement (gains)/losses (0.03) [2.39)
Closing fair value of plan assets (0.02 {16.32)
Contribution by Employer includes % NIL paid directly by Company to which was not funded.
Description of Plan Assets
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,

2025 2024
Insurer Managed Funds 100.00% 100.00%
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Year 1 cashflow 30,73 0.47
Year 2 cashflow, 31.46 17.97
Year 3 cashilow 37.08 20.40
Year 4 cashflow 40.82 22,87
Year 5 cashflow 38.31 24.01
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 137.05 83.33

{K)

Sensitivity analysis

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact
of a change in each of the lied assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in
practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For
presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation
presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensitivity Analysis from

previous year.

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting For the year ended | For year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Rate of discounting

Impact of +0.5% change 294.64 151.30

(% change} {2.99%) (3.21%)

Impact of -0.5% change 313.37 161.63

(% change) 3.17% 3.39%

Rate of salary increase

Impact of +0.5% change 313.42 161.68

(% change) 3.19% 3.43%

Impact of -0.5% change 2945 151.21

(% change) {3.04%) (3.27%)

(L} Other disclosures
The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31,2025 is 6.60 years and as at March 31, 2024 [s 6.01 years.

The Cormpany's best estimate of the contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the next year is % 30.73 lakhs.
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38 Related party disclosures

38.1 Details of related parties

WRITE BETTER

Description of relationship

Name of the related party

Holding Company

Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello
World Private Limited)

Subsidiary Company

Unomax Sales And Marketing Pvt. Ltd.
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt. Ltd.

Key management personnel
- Director
- Director
- Director
- Chief Financial Officer

Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod
Gaurav Pradeep Rathod
Sreyas R. Jain

transactions have taken place)

Enterprises over which the KMP have Significant Influence (where

Cello Household Appliances Pvt. Ltd,

Cello Household Products Pvt. Ltd.

Cello Houseware Pvt. Ltd.

Cello Industries Pvt, Ltd,

Cello Pens And Stationery Pvt. Ltd.

Cello Plastic Industrial Warks

Unomax Pens And Stationery Pvt. Ltd.
Vardhman Realtors

Cello Foundation (Formerly known as Badamia

Charitable Trust)
Wim Plast Ltd.
38.2 Transactions during the year with related parties
S.No. |Particulars For the year ended | For the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A Sales

Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt. Ltd. = 10.57
Unomax Sales And Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 6,874.40 11,524.25
Total (A) 6,874.40 11,534.82

1| Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Household Products Pvt. Ltd. 31.88 68.31
Cello Houseware Pvt. Ltd. 19.83 33.34
Unomax Pens And Stationery Pvt. Ltd. - 43.83
Wim Plast Ltd. 4.80 3.69
Total (B) 56.51 155.17
Total (A+B) 6,930.91 11,689.99
B Labour Charges received
I|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence

Cello Household Products Put. Ltd. 5.95 8.16
Total 5.95 8.16




S. No. |Particulars For the year ended | For the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
£ Sale of Property plant and equipment
Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instumnents Pvt. Ltd. - 2.10
Total - 2.10
D Sale of RODTEP License
Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instumnents Pvt. Ltd. - 7.32
Total - 7.32
E ‘|Expenses Reimbursed
||Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 0.28 1.38
Total (A) 0.28 1.38
11| Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Industries Pvt. Ltd. 0.16 -
Wim Plast Ltd. 0.02 3.89
Total (B) 0.18 3.89
1l|Key management personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod - 0.23
Total (C) - 0.23
Total (A+B+C) 0.46 5.50
F Purchases
I{Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) - 11.40
Total (A) - 11.40
1| Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt. Ltd. - g 4
Unomax Sales and Marketing Private Limited 25.56 -
Total (B) 25.56 7.77
111 |Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Househaold Products Pvt. Ltd. 2.18 259.00
Cello Industries Pvt, Ltd. - 2.66
Total (c) 2.18 261.66
Total (A+B+C) 27.74 273.06
G Purchase of RODTEP License
||Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Unomax Pens and Stationery Pvt. Ltd. 1.94
Total - 1.94
H Purchases of Praperty, plant and equipment
||Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Industries Pvt. Ltd. - 25.00
Total - 25.00
I Rent paid
|| Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Household Appliances Pvt, Ltd. 261,95 261.95
Vardhman Realtors 42.17 47.75
Total (A) 304.12 309.70




S.No. |Particulars For the year ended | For the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I|Key management personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod 36.54 36.54
Total (B) 36.54 36.54
Total (A + B) 340.66 346.24
J Royalty Expenses
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Plastic Industrial Works - 37.82
Total - 37.82
K Loans taken
||{Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 1,149.17 -
Total 1,149.17 -
L Loan taken - repaid
I{Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 2,399.17 2,050.00
Total (A) 2,399.17 2,050.00
I|Key management personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod 393.37 952.00
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod 755.80 748.00
Total (C} 1,149.17 1,700.00
Total (A+B+C) 3,548.34 3,750.00
M Loan given
|| Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt. Ltd. - 110.00
Total - 110.00
N Loan given Received back
|| Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt, Ltd. 750.00
Total 750.00 -
0 Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution
1|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Foundation {Formerly known as Badamia Charitable Trust) 109.81 63.25
Total 109.81 63.25

The transactions with related parties are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm’s length transactions. All the related party transactions are reviewed and approved by board of directors.
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38.3 Amounts outstanding with related parties
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S.No. |Particulars As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
AlLoan Receivable
I|Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt. Ltd. 2,115.00 2,865.00
Total 2,115.00 2,865.00
B|Trade Receivable
||Subsidiairy Company
Unomax Sales And Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 6,718.47 5,765.83
Total (A) 6,718.47 5,765.83
ll|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Household Products Pvt. Ltd. 1.58 3.71
Unomax Pens & Stationery Pvt. Ltd. 26.72 27.10
Total (B) 28.30 30.81
Total (A+B) 6,746.77 5,796.64
C|Loan Payable
I|Key management personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod - 39337
Pankaj Ghisulal Rathod - 755.80
Total (A) - 1,149.17
Il |Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 4,800.00 6,050.00
Total (B) 4,800.00 6,050.00
Total (A+B) 4,800.00 7,199.17
D|Trade Payables
I|Holding Company
Cello World Limited (formerly known as Cello World Private Limited) 0.02 %
Total (1) 0.02 B
Il|Enterprises over which the KMP have significant influence
Cello Household Appliances Pvt. Ltd. 23.58 -
Vardhman Realtors 3.80 3.80
Total (1) 27.38 3.80
11| Key management personnel
Pradeep Ghisulal Rathod 3.29 3.29
Total (11l 3.29 3.29
Total (I+1+11) 30.69 7.09
D|Investment in Subsidiaries
Unomax Writing Instruments Pvt, Ltd. 100.00 . 100.00
Unomax Sales And Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 1.00 1.00
Total 101.00 101.00

38.4 Compensation of key managerial personnel

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Company, is set out below in aggregate for each of the

categories specified in Ind AS 24:

Post-employment benefits

For the year ended | For the period ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-term employee benefits 60.29 49.31

(a) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity, as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

(b} All decisions relating to the remuneration of the Directors are taken by the Board of Directors of the Company, in

accordance with shareholders’ approval, wherever necessary.
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39 Financial instruments and risk management

39.1 Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to

stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt
offset by cash and bank balances and total equity of the Company.

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024

Long term debts* B 479.91
Short term debts* 4,800.00 8,858.09
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (226.06) (37.56)
Net debt 4,573.94 9,300.43
Total Equity 12,785.01 8,125.16
Net debt to equity ratio 0.36 114
Debt to equity ratio 0.38 1.15

* Debt includes lease liabilities

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and year

ended March 31, 2024. "

39.2 Categories of financial instruments

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Trade Receivable 10,022.56 8,675.41
(b) Cash and cash equivalent 226.06 37.56
(c) Bank balances other than (b) above - -
(d) Loans 2,139.37 2,892.47
(e) Other financial assets 8.45 6.89
Measured at cost/deemed cost
(a) Investments in subsidiaries 101.00 101.00
Total financial assets 12,497.44 11,713.33
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
(a) Borrowings 4,800.00 8,649.17
(b) Lease liabilities - 688.83
(c) Trade payables 1,417.85 2,087.87
(d) Other financial liabilities - 28.57
Total financial liabilities 6,217.85 11,454.44

39.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial

liabilities is to finance and support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets comprise cash and bank
balance, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior

management team oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of
these risks, which are summarised below:

(i). Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk mainly comprises interest risk, currency risk, and product price risk.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the
financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2025 and as at March 31, 2024.
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(a) Interest rate risk:

WRITE BETTER

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
short-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
The short-term borrowings of the Company do not have a significant fair value or cash flow interest rate risk due to their short

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and
borrowings taken at floating rates. With all other variables held constant, the Company's loss before tax is affected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Asat March31, | AsatMarch31,
2025 2024
Impact on Profit/{Loss) before tax for the year
0.50% increase in Basis Point (%) - (7.25)
0.50% decrease in Basis Point (%) - 7.25

(b} Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s

operating activities denominated in foreign currency and thus the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to trade
pavables and receivables.
Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date (in respective currency):

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024
(a). Trade receivables:
In USD 38.05 33.94
Equivalentin X 3,256.30 2,829.64
{b). Advances (from customer):
In USD 0.06 0.62
Equivalentin X 5.29 51.82
{c). Advances (to vendors):
In USD 4.38 3.76
In JPY 82.44 -
Equivalent in X 422.85 315.78
(d). Trade payables:
In USD - -
Equivalent in X - -
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities is as

follows:
Impact on Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year

(c)

(ii).

{a)

Particulars For the period For the period
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
(a). Trade receivables:
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) 16.28 14,15
0.50% decrease (%) (16.28) (14.15)
(b). Advances (from customer):
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) (0.03) (0.26)
0.50% decrease (%) 0.03 0.26
{c). Advances (to vendors):
USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) : (1.87) (1.58)
0.50% decrease (%) 1.87 1.58
JPY currency:
0.50% increase (%) (0.24) -
0.50% decrease (%) 0.24 -

{d). Trade payables:

USD currency:
0.50% increase (%) % =
0.50% decrease (%) < -

Product price risk

In a potentially inflationary economy, the Company expects periodical price increases across its product lines. Product price increases
which are not in line with the levels of customers’ discretionary spends, may affect the business/ sales volumes. In such a scenario,
the risk is managed by offering judicious product discounts to customers to sustain volumes. The Company negotiates with its
vendors for purchase price rebates such that the rebates substantially absorb the product discounts offered to the customers. This
helps the Company to protect itself from significant product margin losses. This mechanism also works in case of a downturn in the
retail sector, although overall volumes would get affected.

Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Trade receivables

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with only credit worthy counterparties in case of institutional customers and the credit
risk exposure for institutional customers is managed by the Company by credit worthiness checks. Refer note 15 for expected credit
loss on trade receivable.

(b} Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the
year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance Committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through a counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,
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(iii). Liquidity risk management
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Liquidity risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk Management implies maintenance of
sufficient cash to meet obligations when due. The Company continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing

the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk table

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company'’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Particulars s 1-5 years Total
1year
March 31, 2025
Borrowings 4,800.00 - 4,800.00
Trade payables 1,417.85 - 1,417.85
Lease liabilities - - -
Other financial liabilities - - -
Total 6,217.85 - 6,217.85
March 31, 2024
Borrowings 8,649.17 - 8,649.17
Trade payables 2,087.87 - 2,087.87
Lease liabilities 208.92 479.91 688.83
Other financial liabilities 28.57 - 28.57
Total 10,974.53 479.91 11,454.44

The above table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest

date on which the Company mav be required to pay.
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40 Fair Value Measurement

40.1 Fair value of the financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The Company has not measured any financial assets and financial liabllities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis.

40.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:
The management believes the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate their fair values,

41 Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:
(i) Details of Investments made by the Company are given in Note 8 in the financial statement.
(ii) Details of loan given to subsidiary company is provided in Note 9 in the financial statement.

42 Additional regulatory information as required by Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013
2. The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property.

b. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period.

c. There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Company during each reporting period, which
required approval from the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d. The Company did not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or
Companies Act, 1956.

€. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
fareign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

-

. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

g. The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

h. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Restriction an number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

i. The Company does not have any Loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties , either
severally or jointly with any other person, that are
{a) repayable on demand or
{b) without snerifvine anv terms or neriod of renavment

J. There are no charges ar satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

42,1 Audit Trail
The Company uses SAP S/4 HANA as its accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot
be disabled, throughout the year as required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 known as the Companies (Accounts} Amendment Rules, 2021.

Further, the Company has been maintaining daily backup of books of accounts and other records, on servers
physically located in India throughout the year.

42.2 Code of Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-
employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the
Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the
period when the Code becomes effective.
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43 Ratio Analysis and its elements
The ratios presented below have been averaged and compared with previous year.
Current Ratio = current assets divided by current liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current assets 16,259.24 15,939.13
Current liabilities 6,292.04 11,096.16
Ratio (In times) 2.58 1.44
% Change from previous year 79.17%

b)

©)

d)

Reasons for change more than 25%

Current Ratio Increases due to Increase in Trade Receivable and decrease in Current Liability majorly due to decrease

in barrowing.

Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity

Particulars For the year ended March|For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024

Net profit after tax 4,730.81 5,920.38

Average equity 10,455.09 5,166.71

Ratio 0.45 1.15

% Change from previous year -60.51%

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity.

Reasons for change more than 25%

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity. However for the period ended March 31,
2024, the Average equity has been derived by everaging the previous year's equity which was only for 5 month as it

was first year of operations.

Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of goods sold divided by avera

ge inventory

Particulars For the year ended March|For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024

Cost of goods sold 9,394.72 11,858.32

Average Inventory 3,167.11 3,444.59

Ratio (In times) 2.97 3.44

% Change from previous year -13.83%

*Average inventory represents the average of opening and closi

Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by aver

ng total inventory.

age trade receivables

Particulars For the year ended March|For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024

Credit Sales™ 21,292.49 26,634.07

Average trade receivables # 9,348.99 7,553.43

Ratio (In times) 2.28 3.53

% Change from previous year -35.41%

* Credit sales includes sale of products, services and scrap sales.

# Average Trade receivables represents the average of opening and closing trade receivables.
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Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio for current year decreases due to decrease in Sale for current year and increase in

Trade Receivable with compare to previous year.

Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

Particulars For the year ended March|For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Credit Purchases 8,924.88 11,773.20

Average trade payables # 1,589.18 1,833.05

Ratio (In times) 5.62 6.42

% Change from previous year -12.56%

# Average Trade Payables represents the average of opening an

Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working cap

d closing trade payables.

ital

Particulars For the year ended March|For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Sales (A) 21,292.49 26,634.07

Current Assets (B) 16,259.24 15,939.13

Current Liabilities (C) 6,292.04 11,096.16

Net Working Capital (D=B-C) 9,967.20 4,842.97

Ratio (In times) (E= A / D)

2.14

5.50

% Change from previous year

-61.16%

Reasons for change more than 25%

Net Capital Turnover Ratio for current year decrease majorly due to decrease in sales for the year.

Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars For the year ended March|Far the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Net profit after tax 4,730.81 5,920.38
Sales 21,875.90 27,241.39
Ratio 22% 22%
% Change from previous year -0.49%
Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by average Capital
Particulars For the year ended March |For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024
Profit before tax (A} 6,359.81 7,818.78
Interest (B) 55.94 151.69
EBIT (C) = (A+B) 6,415.75 7,970.47
Tangible net worth (D)* 12,780.19 8,118.20
Total debt (E) 4,800.00 9,338.00
Deferred tax liability (F) 14.67 55.91
Capital employed (G)=(D+E+F) 17,594.86 17,512.11
Ratio (In %) 36% 46%
% Change from previous year -19.88%
*Tangible net worth =Net worth (Shareholder's fund) -Intangible assets -DTA
Debt Equity ratio = Total debts divided by Total Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total debts (Long term and short term)* 4,800.00 9,338.00
Shareholder's funds 12,785.01 8,125.16
Ratio (In times) 0.38 1.15
% Change from previous year -67.33%

* Debt includes lease liabilities
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Debt Equity ratio for current year has improved due to increase in profit for the year in decrease in debt due to

repayments.

Debt service coverage ratio= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Profit after tax (A) 4,730.81 5,920.38
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

- Depreciation and amortisation (B) 592.60 752.13
- Finance cost (C) 55.94 151.69
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-tax) ([ 648.54 903.82
Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post-tax) 48532 676.35
(E=D (1-Tax rate))

Earnings available for debt services (F = A+E) 5,216.13 6,596.73
Debt service

Interest (G) 55.94 151.69
Lease payments (H) - -
Principal repayments () 3,849.17 3,862.37
Total Interest and principal repayments (J =G +H + 1) 3,905.11 4,014.06
Ratio (In times) (J=F/ 1) 1.34 1.64
% Change from previous year -18.72%

k) Return on Investment® = Profit divided by cost of investment

NA

*Return on investment (ROI) is a financial ratio used to calculate the benefit an investor will receive in relation to their
investment cost. The one of widely used method is Time Weighted Rate of Return (TWRR) and the same should be
followed to calculate ROI. It adjusts the return for the timing of investment cash flows and its formula / method of

calculation is commonly available.
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44 No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial
statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

45 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassed wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s

classification/disclosure.

46 The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 23, 202§
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